Public Document Pack

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
DATE:

Thursday, 21 October 2021

TIME:

10.00 am

VENUE:
Online only - Due to Covid-19, this meeting will be held remotely and
will be livestreamed here: https://bit.ly/HarrogateYouTube (Copy and paste the
link in your browser)

PANEL MEMBERS: Councillor Sue Lumby, Councillor Victoria Oldham and
Councillor Robert Windass
STANDBY MEMBER: TBC (to attend only if specifically requested to do so)

Notice is hereby given that the above meeting will take place for the purpose of
deciding an application under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.
AGENDA
Item Title
1.

TO APPOINT A CHAIR:

2.

INTRODUCTIONS:

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests
under the Code of Conduct.

4.

TO AGREE A PROCEDURE FOR HEARING:
Copy of suggested procedure attached.

5.

EXEMPT INFORMATION:
To determine whether to exclude the press and public during the
consideration of agenda items.

6.

NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION FOR CLARO SOCIAL,
HIGH STREET, KNARESBOROUGH, HG5 0EJ:
The Licensing Enforcement Officer to submit a written report.

Page
Number

3-8

9 - 100

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

NOTES:
Members are reminded that in order to expedite business at the meeting and
enable Officers to adapt their presentations to address areas causing difficulty,
they are encouraged to contact Officers prior to the meeting with questions on
technical issues in reports.
Please contact Charles Casey - Democratic Services Officer 01423 500600,
Email: democraticservices@harrogate.gov.uk, if you have any queries or need
further information on this agenda - telephone or email

Legal and Governance | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate | HG1 9RW
01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4
TEMPORARY LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS PROCEDURE
AND GUIDANCE
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 and
The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005
Introduction
This Temporary Procedure and Guidance note makes provision for the conduct of local
authority Licensing Sub-Committee hearings, held between 4 April 2020 and 7th May 2021,
and for public and press access to these meetings and are made in accordance with
Coronavirus Act 2020 and The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020.
The Remote Meetings Protocol sets out further information on how remote meetings operate
at Harrogate Borough Council and it is strongly recommended that all parties read this
protocol before participating in any meeting.
Microsoft Teams
Remote meetings at Harrogate Borough Council are held on Microsoft Teams. This enables
all participants to see and hear and been seen and heard during the meeting in line with the
regulations. Microsoft Teams is free to download and can be downloaded onto a
laptop/tablet/smartphone. It can also be opened in a web browser and for those without
internet access, a dial-in option is also available.
Prior to any meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee, a link to the meeting will be sent from
Democratic Services. This link is only for the recipient of the email and should not be
forwarded without the consent of Democratic Services. To access the meeting simply click
the link that says “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting.”
Once you have been admitted to the meeting you will be able to see a menu bar that gives
you the option to turn your microphone and camera on and off. Please familiarise yourself
with these options prior to the meeting. If you would like any training on how to use Microsoft
Teams please contact democraticservices@harrogate.gov.uk
The meeting will be livestreamed on YouTube unless the Sub-Committee resolve to
go into exempt session. The recording will remain on YouTube for 4 weeks.
Meeting Etiquette
All participants should mute their microphones until invited to speak by the Chair and only
one person should speak at any one time. Any video-feed should show a plain background.
Unacceptable behaviour will not be tolerated. The Chair can mute participants if they are not
adhering to the protocols and in extreme circumstances can remove participants if they
deem it necessary.
If you wish to speak during a meeting, simply press the “raise my hand” button on the menu
bar and wait to be called to speak by the Chair.
Technical Difficulties
If you experience any technical difficulties during the meeting please contact the meeting
facilitator on 07525 988300.

Page 3

Licensing Sub-Committee Procedure
Each application that comes before the Sub-Committee will be treated on its own merits, and
this Licensing Authority will make its decision based upon:


The merits of the application, and



The promotion of the four licensing objectives which are:
o

The prevention of crime and disorder

o

Public safety

o

The prevention public nuisance; and

o

The protection of children from harm



The policy of the licensing authority, a copy of which can be viewed on
http://www.harrogate.gov.uk/pdf/policy.pdf or obtained from Licensing, Safer
Communities PO Box 787, Harrogate, HG1 9RW



The guidance issued by the Home Office in April 2017 under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003.

This Council is committed to making decisions, in an honest, accountable and transparent
fashion.
Hearings will be held in public but the Sub-Committee may decide to exclude the public from
all or part of a hearing where it considers the public interest in doing so outweighs the public
interest in the hearing taking place in public. In this context “public” includes any party to the
hearing or any representative of a party.
Pre-meeting check
All participants are required to join the meeting 15 minutes prior to the formal start time for a
technical check and to run through proceedings.
Proceedings
1. The Clerk to the meeting will beginning by asking the Sub-Committee to appoint a
Chair.
2. The Chair will open the meeting by explaining the procedure for the Sub-Committee.
3. Agenda item 2 on the agenda will be introductions. The Chair will ask all parties to
introduce themselves and will confirm as to the names of any witnesses they will be
calling. Councillors will state their name and the ward they represent. Officers will
state their name and job title. All other participants will state their name and the
reason for their attendance at the Sub-Committee (e.g. applicant, licence holder,
other persons etc.) At this point, the Sub-Committee will satisfy itself as to whether a
representative has been appointed on behalf of those raising a representation and if
not will establish who wishes to speak. The Chair may determine whether it is
possible to appoint one representative to represent the view of all those raising a
representation to present the views of all present and will indicate an equal period of
time to each of the parties present who wishes to speak to present their case. This
Sub-Committee recommends a maximum of 20 minutes is allowed to each party to
make all relevant statements and respectfully requests that all parties keep points
pertinent and the discussion moving in the interests of cost and efficiency.

Page 4

Once participants have introduced themselves they should turn off their
microphone.
4. Item 3 on the agenda will be declarations of interest. The Chair will ask if any
Member of the Sub-Committee has an interest they wish to declare.
5. The procedure for the hearing will be agreed at agenda item 4.
6. At agenda item 5 the Solicitor to the Sub-Committee will advise of any exempt
information items. If there is exempt information the Sub-Committee could resolve to
go into exempt session. This means that the public would no longer be able to watch
the Sub-Committee meeting.
7. Agenda item 6 is the substantive matter for decision. The Chair will ask the
representative from the Licensing Authority to outline their report.
8. Members of the Sub-Committee are to use the “raise my hand” option if they wish to
ask any relevant questions of the representative of the Licensing Team. The Chair
will then invite Members to ask their questions.
9. The Chair will invite the Applicant/Licence Holder, (or their representative) to address
the Sub-Committee and present their case including clarification of any information
arising from the officers’ outline, if necessary.
10. If necessary, the Sub-Committee will consider requests to allow other parties invited
by the Applicant/Licence Holder to address the Sub-Committee.
11. Members of the Sub-Committee are to use the “raise my hand” option if they wish to
ask any relevant questions of the Applicant/Licence Holder or their representative.
The Chair will then invite Members to ask their questions.
12. Parties that made representations are to use the “raise my hand” option if they wish
to ask any relevant questions of the Applicant/Licence Holder or their representative.
The Chair will then invite them to ask their questions.
13. The Chair will invite those that have made representations (police, environmental
health, other persons etc) to address the Sub-Committee. Questions from Members
and the Applicant/Licence Holder or their representative will be taken after each party
has addressed the Sub-Committee.
14. Members of the Sub-Committee are to use the “raise my hand” option if they wish to
ask any relevant questions of those making representations. The Chair will then
invite Members to ask their questions.
15. The Applicant/Licence Holder or their representative are to use the “raise my hand”
option if they wish to ask any relevant questions of those making representations.
The Chair will then invite them to ask their questions.
16. Steps 13-15 will be repeated until all parties making representations have addressed
the Sub-Committee.

Page 5

17. The Chair will invite the Applicant/Licence Holder or their representative, and any
parties making representations, to briefly summarise their points if they wish.
18. The Chair will ask all parties if they are satisfied that they have said all they wish to.
19. The Chair will then announce that the Sub-Committee will retire to discuss and make
their decision. In order to do this the Members of the Sub-Committee, the Solicitor to
the Council and the Clerk to the Sub-Committee will all leave the Microsoft Teams
meeting and join a separate meeting. All other parties will be asked to turn their
camera feeds and microphones off and may take a break from the proceedings. All
parties are asked however to keep the meeting running and their volume up so they
can be aware of when the Sub-Committee return to announce their decision. The
video-stream to YouTube will be suspended for the duration of the deliberation.
20. Once the Sub-Committee have made their decision they will return to the main
meeting and the video-feed will recommence on YouTube. The Chair will do a quick
roll-call of those present to ensure everyone has returned to the meeting.
21. The Chair will relay the decision and the reasons given for the decision, and any
conditions placed upon the licence (if granted) and the licensing objective that they
relate to.
22. The Chair will announce that the meeting has ended. All participants can then leave
the meeting by pressing the red button on the right hand side of the menu bar.
Please note:
a. Any changes to the agenda will be given at the beginning of the meeting.
b. The circulation of additional documentation will not be possible during the meeting. If
you have any additional documentation you would like to share please send it to the
Clerk of the meeting at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.
c. The Sub-Committee will disregard any information given by a party, or any other
person appearing at the hearing which is not relevant to:
 Their application, representation or notice; and
 The promotion of the licensing objectives or the crime prevention objective
where the Police has given notice.
d. If a party has informed the Licensing Authority that they will not be attending or be
represented at the hearing it may proceed in their absence. Persons making
representations may choose to rely on their written representation.
e. If a party fails to respond to the Notice, does not attend the hearing and is not
otherwise represented the sub-committee may either:
 Adjourn the hearing if it considers it both necessary in the public interest, or
 Hold the hearing in the party’s absence
f.

If the Sub-Committee holds the hearing in the absence of a party it will consider at
the hearing the application, representation or notice given by the party.

g. If the Sub-Committee adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must further notify
the parties but please note that when arranging adjournments transitional hearings

Page 6

cannot be adjourned to a date beyond the two months from the date the applicant’s
application was received.
h. Similarly, this authority generally will allow all parties to ask questions of another
party present, but this decision will be taken on a case by case basis and in some
exceptional circumstances (a reason will be given) cross examination may be
prohibited.
i.

The Licensing Authority has the right to exclude any parties disrupting this hearing, at
its discretion. Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to
the Authority in writing, any information which they would have been entitled to give
orally had they not been requested to leave.

j.

In cases where a decision cannot be given at the end of the hearing, the Clerk will
inform the Applicant when they will be notified of the decision within 5 working days.

k. Proceeding will not be rendered void only as a result of failure to comply with any
provisions of the Hearings Regulations.
l.

Where an Authority considers that any person may have been prejudiced as the
result of an irregularity relating to the Hearings Regulations, it may take such steps,
as it thinks fit to resolve the irregularity, before reaching its determination.

m. The authority may correct clerical mistakes in any document recording a
determination of the Authority, or errors arising in such a document as the result of
an accidental slip or omission.
Appeals
1. Either those who have made an application or those who have made representations
on an application may appeal to the Magistrates Court.
2. An appeal must be commenced within twenty-one days beginning with the day on
which the appellant was notified by the Licensing Authority of their decision. Notice
of Appeal must be given to Harrogate Magistrates Court.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item No…...
REPORT TO:

Licensing Sub-Committee

DATE:

Thursday 21 October 2021

DEPARTMENT:

Community Services

REPORTING OFFICER:

Director of Community Services
(Report written by Wan Malachi)

SUBJECT:

Licensing Act 2003
Claro Social
42 High Street
Knaresborough
HG5 0EJ

WARD/S AFFECTED:

Knaresborough

FORWARD PLAN REF:
N/A
___________________________________________________________________
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to determine an application for a premises
licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

2.1

The application must be determined taking all factors into consideration.

2.2

The options are:
1. To grant the licence
2. To grant the licence with conditions
3. To reject the application in whole or in part.

2.3

Any licence granted will be subject to:
 Any conditions imposed by the Licensing Sub-Committee
 Any mandatory conditions which must be included on the licence
under section 19, 20 or 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Appendix 2)
 The mandatory conditions imposed by the Licensing Act 2003
(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 (Appendix 2)

3.0

RECOMMENDED REASON/S FOR DECISION/S

Page 9

3.1

Application for a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

3.2

The applicant is Major Point Bars Ltd, 32 Park Cross Street, Leeds, LS1 2QH

3.3

Details of the application:
The premises will be a collaboration between Major Tom’s Social, based in
Harrogate, and local Knaresborough brewery Turning Point Brew Co. The
intention is to offer a local and family friendly independent bar and
restaurant. The premises have applied for recorded music, films and retail
sale of alcohol both on and off the premises. A copy of the application is
attached at appendix 1

3.4

Licensable activities:

Recorded Music
Sunday to Saturday

23:00 to 00:00

Films
Sunday to Saturday

12:00 to 23:00

Sale by retail of alcohol
Sunday to Saturday

11:00 to 23:00

Hours that premises are open to the public
Sunday to Saturday

3.5

1200 to 00:30

Details of the proposed operating schedule are as follows:
Appendix 2 - Mandatory Conditions
Appendix 3 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Appendix 4 - Plans

4.0

PROMOTION OF LICENSING OBJECTIVES

4.1

Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 places a duty on the Licensing Authority
to carry out its functions under the Act with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives. The licensing objectives are:



The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

Page 10
2




The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

4.2

Each objective is of equal importance. It is important to note that there are
no other licensing objectives, so that these four objectives are paramount
considerations at all times.

5.0

REPRESENTATIONS FROM RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

5.1

Representations have been received from Harrogate Borough Council
Environmental Protection on the objective of public nuisance.

5.2

The representation is attached at appendix 5.

5.3

The applicant has accepted the Environmental Protection representation in
full and agreed to the conditions contained in the representation. This
correspondence is attached at appendix 6.

5.4

Representations have been received from North Yorkshire Police on the
objective of the prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of public
nuisance.

5.5

The representation is attached at appendix 7.

5.6

The applicant has accepted the North Yorkshire Police representation in full
and agreed to the conditions contained in the representation. This
correspondence is attached at appendix 8.

6.0

REPRESENTATIONS FROM ANOTHER PERSON

6.1

There are thirteen representations received from other persons.
These representations are attached at appendix 9.

6.2

The applicant provided a written response in answer to some of the
representations which is attached at appendix 10

7.0

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

7.1

The following sections of the Harrogate Borough Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy are relevant in considering the licensing objectives in
relation to this application:





8.0

Disturbance and environment - sections 4, 6 and 9
Crime and disorder - sections 4 and 6
Public safety - section 4
Protection of children - sections 4 and 6

OTHER GUIDANCE FOR CONSIDERATION

Page 11
3

8.1

The following sections of the Guidance issued under section182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 (updated April 2018) issued by The Secretary of State for
Culture, Media and Sport are relevant in considering the licensing objectives
in relation to this application:





9.0

Crime and disorder Section 2.1
Public safety Section 2.7
Public nuisance Section 2.15
Protection of children from harm Section 2.22

ASSOCIATED PAPERS
Appendix 1 – Copy of application
Appendix 2 – Mandatory Conditions imposed under Licensing Act 2003
Appendix 3 – Conditions consistent with operating schedule
Appendix 4 – Copy of the premises plan
Appendix 5 – Representation from Environmental Protection
Appendix 6 – Agreement to conditions and withdrawal of Environmental
Protection representation
Appendix 7 – Representation from North Yorkshire Police
Appendix 8 – Agreement to conditions and withdrawal of North Yorkshire
Police representation
Appendix 9 – Representations from other persons
Appendix 10 – Written response to representations from applicant

10.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1

Finance staff have been consulted during preparation of this report and
comments are provided in the paragraph below. / Consultation with finance
staff was not necessary during the preparation of this report.

10.2

No matters were identified.

11.0

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

11.1

Consultation with the Human Resources section was not necessary during
the preparation of this report.

12.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1

The Legal section has been consulted during preparation of this report.

13.0

ICT IMPLICATIONS

13.1

Consultation with the Technical Advisory Board (TAB) was not necessary
during preparation of this report.

14.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

Page 12
4

14.1

A risk assessment has been undertaken and the major risks are outlined
below.

14.2

No major risks were identified.

15.0

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

15.1

An Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment has been undertaken and the
impact of this proposal on race, disability and gender equality in the local
community or in the Council is set out below.

15.2

No risks were identified.

16.0

HUMAN RIGHTS

16.1

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on
Human Rights and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way
which is incompatible with a convention right. The Sub-Committee will have
regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its licensing functions, with
particular reference to the following provisions: -

16.2

Article 1 of the first protocol – every person is entitled to the peaceful
enjoyment of his/her possessions.

16.3

Article 6 - in the determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an
independent and impartial tribunal established by law.

16.4

Article 8 – everyone has the right to respect for his/her home and private
and family life.

17.0

CONCLUSIONS

17.1

An application has been made for a premises licence by Major Points Ltd for
Claro Social, 42 High Street, Knaresborough, HG5 0EJ. Conditions agreed
with Environment Protection and North Yorkshire Police will form part of the
conditions proposed in the operating schedule

17.2

There are thirteen representations for the Sub-Committee to consider as
attached at Appendix 9.

Background Papers - None

OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact the Licensing Team if you require any further
information on the contents of this report. The Team can be contacted at Licensing,
Harrogate Borough Council, P.O. Box 787, Harrogate, HG1 9RW, by telephone on 01423
500600 01423 500600 or by e-mail at licensing@harrogate.gov.uk

Page 13
5

This page is intentionally left blank

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that
your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

W
e

Major Point Bars LTD

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described
in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing
authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 – Premises details
Claro Chambers,
Ground Floor,
42, High Street,

Post town

Knaresborough

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic rateable value of premises

Postcode

HG5 0EQ

n/a
£28,000

Part 2 - Applicant details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as

Please tick as appropriate
☐

please complete section (A)

X☐

please complete section (B)

ii

as a limited company/limited liability
partnership
as a partnership (other than limited liability)

☐

please complete section (B)

iii

as an unincorporated association or

☐

please complete section (B)

iv

other (for example a statutory corporation)

☐

please complete section (B)

a)

an individual or individuals *

b)

a person other than an individual *
i

Page 15

1 of 24

c)

a recognised club

☐

please complete section (B)

d)

a charity

☐

please complete section (B)

e)

the proprietor of an educational establishment

☐

please complete section (B)

f)

a health service body

☐

please complete section (B)

g)

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the Care
Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

☐

please complete section (B)

ga)

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1
of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the
meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

☐

please complete section (B)

h)

the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

☐

please complete section (B)

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box
below):
I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the premises for
licensable activities; or
I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

☐X
☐
☐

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

M
r

Mrs

☐

Miss

☐

Ms

☐

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

First names
Surname
Date of birth

I am 18 years old or over

Please tick yes

Nationality

Current residential address
if different from premises
address

Post town

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address
(optional)
Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking
service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see note 15 for
information)

Page 16

2 of 22

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

M
r

☐

Mrs

☐

Miss

☐

Ms

Surname
Date of birth

☐

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

First names
I am 18 years old or over

☐

Please tick yes

Nationality
Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking
service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see note 15 for
information)

Current residential address
if different from premises
address

Post town

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address
(optional)
(B) OTHER APPLICANTS
Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give
any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body
corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.
Name
Major Point Bars LTD
Address
32, Park Cross Street, Leeds, LS1 2QH

Registered number (where applicable) 13399239

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
LTD Company

Telephone number (if any) 07779 599 031
E-mail address toby@majortomssocial.co.uk

Page 17

3 of 22

Part 3 Operating Schedule
DD

MM

YYYY

When do you want the premises licence to start?
0 1 1 0 2 0 2 1

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do
you want it to end?

DD

MM

YYYY

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)
This venue will be a collaboration between Major Tom’s Social (based in Harrogate) and local
Knaresbrough brewery Turning Point Brew Co. We intend to offer a local & family friendly independent
bar & restaurant offering a selection of craft beers, alcoholic drinks and soft drinks from independent
producers. Alongside this we will be operating a kitchen cooking up mainly pizzas, salads, sandwiches,
baked goods and weekly specials. We will also be looking at hosting occasional food and drink events.
Most food and drink will be consumed inside the premises apart from a small outdoor area to the rear of
the venue (see plans) . There will be a small element of off trade sales of takeout alcohol and food.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one
time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(Please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)

Please tick all that
apply

a)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

☐

b)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

X

c)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

☐

d)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e)

live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

X

g)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

☐

h)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

☐

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

X

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

X

Page 18

4 of 22

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

A
Plays
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of a play take place indoors
or outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Finish

Indoors

☐

Outdoors

☐

Both

☐

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 19

5 of 22

B
Films
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

12:00

23:00

Tue

12:00

23:00

Wed

12:00

23:00

Thur

12:00

23:00

Fri

12:00

23:00

Sat

12:00

23:00

Sun

12:00

23:00

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Indoors

X

Outdoors

☐

Both

☐

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
We may occasionally show a film

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read
guidance note 5)

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 20

6 of 22

C
Indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day

Start

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)

Finish

Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read
guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Page 21

7 of 22

D
Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take
place indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Finish

Indoors

☐

Outdoors

☐

Both

☐

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 22

8 of 22

E
Live music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of live music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please
read guidance note 3)

Indoors
☐

Outdoors

Finish

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
We will be looking at hosting occasional amplified and non-amplified
music events

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 23

9 of 22

F
Recorded music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

23:00

00:00

Tue

23:00

00:00

Wed

23:00

00:00

Thur

23:00

00:00

Fri

23:00

00:00

Sat

23:00

00:00

Sun

23:00

00:00

Will the playing of recorded music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please
read guidance note 3)

Indoors

X

Outdoors

☐

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
We may very occasionally have a DJ play for special events

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music (please
read guidance note 5)
Christmas Eve: 12:00 - 01:00
Boxing Day: 12:00 -01:00
New Years Eve 12:00 -01:00
All bank holiday Sundays: 12:00 - 01:00
Easter Sunday: 12:00 - 01:00
Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 24

10 of 22

G
Performances of dance
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of dance take place indoors
or outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Finish

Indoors

☐

Outdoors

☐

Both

☐

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 25

11 of 22

H
Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
(g)
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day

Will this entertainment take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Mon

Tue

Start

Finish

Indoors

☐

Outdoors

☐

Both

☐

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read guidance
note 5)

Fri

Sat

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or
(g) at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 6)

Sun

Page 26

12 of 22

I
Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the provision of late night refreshment take
place indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors
Outdoors

Finish

☐

Both
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 27

13 of 22

J
Supply of alcohol
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

12:00

00:00

Tue

12:00

00:00

Wed

12:00

00:00

Thur

12:00

00:00

Fri

12:00

00:00

Sat

12:00

00:00

Sun

12:00

00:00

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption –
please tick (please read guidance note 8)

On the
premises

☐

Off the
premises

☐

Both

X

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read
guidance note 5)
Christmas Eve: 12:00 - 01:00
Boxing Day: 12:00 -01:00
New Years Eve 12:00 -01:00
All bank holiday Sundays: 12:00 - 01:00
Easter Sunday: 12:00 - 01:00

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated
premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the
end of the form):
Name Toby Richard Samuel Smith
Date of birth 17/07/1978
Address
1, Beech Villas
Villa Street
Sowerby Bridge

HX6 2NU
Postcode
Personal licence number (if known) LEEDS/PERL/06078/11
Issuing licensing authority (if known)LEEDS

Page 28

14 of 22

K
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read
guidance note 9).
N/A

L
Hours premises are open
to the public
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

12:00

00:30

Tue

12:00

00:30

Wed

12:00

00:30

Thur

12:00

00:30

Fri

12:00

00:30

Sat

12:00

00:30

Sun

12:00

00:30

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)
Christmas Eve: 12:00 - 01:30
Boxing Day: 12:00 -01:30
New Years Eve 12-01:30
All bank holiday Sundays: 12:00 - 01:30
Easter Sunday: 12:00 - 01:30

Non-standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to
the public at different times from those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 29

15 of 22

M
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)
We intend to ensure at all times when the premises are for any licensable activity, there are sufficient
competent staff on duty at the premises for the purpose of fulfilling the terms and conditions of the
licence and for preventing crime and disorder. The Licensee shall ensure that all staff will undertake
training in their responsibilities in relation to the sale of alcohol, particularly with regard to drunkenness
and underage persons. Records will be kept of training and refresher training.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder
Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the premises will be reported to the Police. We
intend to install comprehensive CCTV coverage at the premises and it is operated and maintained at the
premises.
We will also have CCTV cameras in place in the outdoor area.

c) Public safety
Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, H20 and CO2), fire
blanket, internally illuminated fire exit signs, numerous smoke detectors and emergency lighting. All
appliances are inspected annually. All emergency exits shall be kept free from obstruction at all times.
There will also be a separate fire exit area for the tenants on the first floor of the building (Claro
Chambers). Please see plan.

d) The prevention of public nuisance
All customers will be asked to leave quietly. Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to
remind customers to leave quietly and have regard to our neighbours.
Even though there is a barrier to the rear carpark signs will also be displayed in the carpark to advise
customers that the carpark is private and not to be used. All public and supplier access will be through
the front entrance as not to impinge on the first floor tenants. As you can see from the plans the outside
area will only have access from inside the venue.

e) The protection of children from harm
We and the staff will ask persons who appear to be under the age of 25 for photographic ID such as
proof of age cards, the Connexions Card and Citizen Card, photographic driving licence or passport, an
official identity card issued by HM Forces or by an EU country, bearing the photograph and date of birth
of bearer. All staff will be trained for UNDERAGE SALES PREVENTION regularly. A register of
refused sales shall be kept and maintained on the premises.

Page 30

16 of 22

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee.

☐

I have enclosed the plan of the premises.

☐

I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where
applicable.

☐

I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated
premises supervisor, if applicable.

☐

I understand that I must now advertise my application.

☐

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected.
[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a
limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I have
included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom or my
share code issued by the Home Office online right to work checking service (please read
note 15).

☐

☐

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE
OF ANY AMOUNT.
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE,
THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR
IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO
IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL
PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY
ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING
AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE
CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.
Part 4 – Signatures (please read guidance note 11)
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note
12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.
●

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which
is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I am not entitled to be issued
with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

●

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not
subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work relating to a
licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, or have conducted an online right to work check using the Home Office
online right to work checking service which confirmed their right to work
(please see note 15)

Declaration

Signature
Date
Capacity

Director

Page 31

17 of 22

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised
agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what
capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 14)

Post town
Postcode
Telephone number (if any)
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and
any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your
application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption
of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its
proximity to the premises.
2. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:
● Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
● Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community
premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not
exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is
responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age
classification ratings.
● Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
● Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or
display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports –
defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or wrestling with
one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather
than an indoor sporting event.
● Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
on any premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in
a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that
the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in
a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided

Page 32

18 of 22

that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent
for the performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i)
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider
for the hospital.
● Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises,
that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the
audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the
non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i)
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health
care provider for the hospital.
● Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which
amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.
● Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
with no limit on audience size for:
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority;
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care
provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care
provider;
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment)
taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a
moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and (b) that the travelling
circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.
3. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may
include a tent).
4. For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further
details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or
unamplified.
5. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the
summer months.
6. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular
day e.g. Christmas Eve.
7. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the week
when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.
8. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the premises’.
If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please
tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’.
9. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use
of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you
intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or seminudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines.
10. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
11. The application form must be signed.

Page 33

19 of 22

12. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that
they have actual authority to do so.

13. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent must
sign the application form.

14. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.
15. Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications
from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in
the UK who:
● does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
● is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying
on of a licensable activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will
become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application copies
or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by
providing their ‘share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the
Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK
●

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the
child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right
of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

●

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person
named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area
country or Switzerland.

●

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home
Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

●

A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

●

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the
Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely
in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

●

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is
allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit
on their stay in the UK.

●

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an
endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or
has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in combination with an official
document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued
by a Government agency or a previous employer.

●

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name
issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

Page 34

20 of 22

●

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent
National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

●

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

●

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is
currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing
work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

●

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the
Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the
UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

●

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a
national or who has derivative rights or residence.

●

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home
Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the
UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from
doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

●

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under
regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016,
to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence.

●

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission
to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or
proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or
administrative review pending on an immigration decision, such as an appeal or
administrative review reference number.

●

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state
or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights
of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:
o evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member –
e.g. a marriage certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent
residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have been in the UK for
more than 3 months:
(i)
working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii)
self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii)
studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of
sufficient funds; or
(iv)
self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Page 35

21 of 22

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent
must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold
comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an
EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in
the UK and is permitted to work.
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us
checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with
the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you have complied with this
guidance.
Home Office online right to work checking service
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate
their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office
online right to work checking service.
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service,
applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon
accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the applicant’s
date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority to carry out the
check.
In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is
allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing
work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an
immigration status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking
service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access the
service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should submit copy
documents as set out above.

Page 36

22 of 22

Appendix 2
Extract from Licensing Act 2003
19 Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol
(1) Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following
conditions.
(2) The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.
(3) The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.
20 Mandatory condition: exhibition of films
(1) Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition
requiring the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with
this
section.
(2) Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies,
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that
body.
(3) Where(a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or
(b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies
to
the film in question, admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation
made by that licensing authority.
(4) In this section“children” means persons aged under 18; and
“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4
of
the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for
classification).
21 Mandatory condition: door supervision

Page 37

Appendix 2
(1) Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals
must
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the licence must include a condition that each
such
individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.
(2) But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act
2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or
(b) in respect of premises in relation to(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays
or
films or under a gaming licence), or
Appendix 1
(ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations
under
that Act).
(3) For the purposes of this section(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and
(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies
in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.
The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014
1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(a);
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—
P = D + (D×V)
Where (i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

Page 38

Appendix 2
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence—
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994(b).
3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken
to
be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph
2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second
day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
Appendix 1
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which
take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.
The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014
1. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises —
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage,
individuals to —

Page 39

Appendix 2
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the
premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or
supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to
the
public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk
of
undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the
purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity
of,
the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other
person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).
2. (2) The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.
3. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either (a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.
4. The responsible person must ensure that Appendix 1
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises

Page 40

Appendix 2
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply
in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures (i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be
sold,
the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 3

Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
Licensing objectives:
To promote the licensing objectives, the applicants have proposed the following steps at the
premises:
General






We intend to ensure at all times when the premises are for any licensable activity, there are
sufficient competent staff on duty at the premises for the purpose of fulfilling the terms and
conditions of the licence and for preventing crime and disorder.
The Licensee shall ensure that all staff will undertake training in their responsibilities in
relation to the sale of alcohol, particularly with regard to drunkenness and underage
persons.
Records will be kept of training and refresher training.

The prevention of crime and disorder




Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the premises will be reported to the
Police.
We intend to install comprehensive CCTV coverage at the premises and it is operated and
maintained at the premises.
We will also have CCTV cameras in place in the outdoor area

Public safety






Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, H20 and
CO2), fire blanket, internally illuminated fire exit signs, numerous smoke detectors and
emergency lighting.
All appliances are inspected annually.
All emergency exits shall be kept free from obstruction at all times.
There will also be a separate fire exit area for the tenants on the first floor of the building
(Claro Chambers).

The prevention of public nuisance





All customers will be asked to leave quietly.
Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to remind customers to leave quietly
and have regard to our neighbours.
Even though there is a barrier to the rear carpark signs will also be displayed in the carpark
to advise customers that the carpark is private and not to be used.
All public and supplier access will be through the front entrance as not to impinge on the
first floor tenants. As you can see from the plans the outside area will only have access from
inside the venue.

The protection of children from harm


We and the staff will ask persons who appear to be under the age of 25 for photographic ID
such as proof of age cards, the Connexions Card and Citizen Card, photographic driving

Page 43

Appendix 3




licence or passport, an official identity card issued by HM Forces or by an EU country,
bearing the photograph and date of birth of bearer.
All staff will be trained for UNDERAGE SALES PREVENTION regularly.
A register of refused sales shall be kept and maintained on the premises.

Page 44

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Consultation with Responsible Authority
Resp Auth: EP

1. Application for Premises Licence

Claro Social, Ground Floor, 42 High Street

Ref No:
2. Representation: YES

Date: 29 September 2021

3. Representation details
Licensing Objective

Prevention of Public Nuisance

Reason for representation

To prevent noise disturbance to occupiers of
neighbouring residential premises.

Due to residents in close proximity, the Environmental Protection Team recommend
restricting the outdoor use to 21:00 hours. The reduction in the outdoor use will have
a positive effect on preventing public nuisance.
As there will be recorded music at the premises, there is potential for noise breakout
from the premises, especially when the applicant wishes to have DJ events. it is
recommended to ensure all windows and doors are closed to prevent public
nuisance.
Should you be minded to grant the licence as it stands I would recommend that
measures are put in place to try to manage noise from the premises and so help
prevent a public nuisance and so I would recommend the following:

Page 47

Conditions/Remedy

1. Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting
customers and staff to respect the needs of local residents by keeping quiet
but also leave the premises and area quietly.
2. There shall be no deliveries to or dispatches from the premises or the
collection of waste bottles or commercial waste outside the hours of 08:00
and 20:00.
3. Noise from amplified and non-amplified music, singing and speech arising
from regulated entertainment at the premises (between the hours of 23:00
and 00:00 hours) shall not be audible inside habitable rooms of noise
sensitive properties in the vicinity
4. The disposal of waste bottle into external receptacles shall not take place
between the hours of 21:00 and 10:00.

Contact details for Mediation
Name: Tahir Rafiq

Email: Tahir.Rafiq @harrogate.gov.uk

Phone number: 01423 500600 ext. 58529
Signed:

T.Rafiq

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

NOTICE OF RELEVANT REPRESENTATION FOR A
PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003
North Yorkshire Police hereby give notice of objection to the Premises Licence as listed below:
Postal Address of premises or club premises:
CLARO SOCIAL
42 HIGH STREET
Post town: KNARESBOROUGH

Post code (if known): HG5 0EL

Notice of Objection relates to the following licensing objective: (Please tick one or more boxes)
1. The prevention of crime and disorder
2. Public safety
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance
4. The protection of children from harm

GROUNDS FOR RELEVANT REPRESENTATION
Please provide as much information as possible to support this relevant representation:
(e.g. please list any additional information, e.g. dates of problems which are included in the grounds for review)

North Yorkshire Police received an application on Wednesday 1st September 2021 for Claro Social, 42 High Street,
Knaresborough, HG5 0EJ, for a Premises Licence.
North Yorkshire Police are familiar with the operator who also has a licensed premises in the heart of Harrogate's
Night Time Economy which operates well and has good experience in the hospitality trade.
The effective management of licensed premises is important in terms of mitigating the potential for public nuisance
and crime or disorder by persons purchasing alcohol from a venue.
North Yorkshire Police has consulted with the Premises Licence Holder and have proposed the following conditions
be placed onto the premises licence for the purposes of promoting the prevention of “crime and disorder” and “public
nuisance”.
If the applicant is in agreement with the proposed conditions set by North Yorkshire Police, the representation will be
retracted.
Annex 2 Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Proposed conditions - Crime and Disorder
CCTV- NYP's preferred wording
1a. A digital colour, cctv system will be installed to cover the premises and recorded coverage will include all internal
areas to where the public have access to consume alcohol, also to cover the entrance/exit and any external area.
b. It will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are open.

Page 51
582 – 05/2018

c. The recordings should be of good evidential quality to be produced in Court or other such hearing.
d. Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for 28 days. Subject to Data Protection
requirements.
e. Copies of the recordings shall be made available to any Responsible Authority within 48 hours upon request.
Subject to Data Protection requirements.
f. Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording.
g. It is the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are sufficient members of staff available during the
hours of operation to be able to download evidence from the cctv system at the request of the police or responsible
authority. Subject to Data Protection requirements.
Staff Training
2. Documented staff training will be given regarding staff’s obligation under the Licensing Act in respect of the:Retail sale of alcohol
Age verification policy
Conditions attached to the Premises License
Permitted Licensable activities
The Licensing objectives and
The Opening Times of the venue.
3. With such training (condition 2) documented records shall be kept for a minimum of one year and will be made
available immediately upon a reasonable request from any Responsible Authority.
4. A Refusals Register and Incident Report Register will be kept. Such documents will record incidents of staff refusals
of alcohol sales to under-age or drunk people, as well as incidents of any anti-social behavior and ejections from the
premises.
5. Both Refusals and Incident Report registers shall be kept for at least 1 year and they will be made available
immediately upon a reasonable request from any Responsible Authority. [For the avoidance of doubt, the one year
period relates to each respective entry in the log book and runs from the date of that particular entry]:
6.The PLH/DPS will risk assess the need for SIA Door supervisors when deemed necessary, and if SIA Door Supervisors
are on duty at the premises, they shall sign in and out of the premises incident book, providing full details of their
name and SIA number.
7. No open glass drinking vessels shall be taken out of the licensed premises (or licensed area) onto the pavement or
highway.
8. All Off Sales will be in sealed containers.
9. Suitable and conspicuous notices shall be displayed at entrances and exits requesting patrons to minimize noise
and when smoking and/or leaving.
10. The license holder will operate a Challenge 25 Age Verification Policy.- NYP’S preferred wording.
11.The only acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current Passport, photo card Driving License or
identification carrying the PASS logo or military id (until other effective identification technology e.g. thumb print or
pupil recognition , is adopted by the Premises License Holder). NYP’S preferred wording.

Page 52

These will be added to the premises license, along with the steps you have offered in order to promote the licensing
objectives.

Signature:

Date: 09/09/21

Contact name: Jackie Allen ( PC1503)
Address for correspondence: Alcohol Licensing Department Fulford Road Police Station
Post town: York

Post code: YO10 4BY

Tel. number (if any): 01609 643273

Email address if preferred option of contact: NYPLicensing@northyorkshire.pnn.police.uk

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 8

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

14/09/2021
Dear Harrogate borough council (licensing),
I am writing in regards to the application for premises license:
MAJOR POINT BARS LTD
CLARO SOCIAL
42 HIGH STREET
HG50EJ
As a resident of the recently completed and sold ‘Claro Court’ development, my property and a number of elements to
residency are directly affected by the proposed application for license and the terms laid out, more specifically for the ‘on
premises’ elements of the application to which I refer.
I would like to record my strong opposition to this application for the following reasons:
Pollution (Noise, Air, Light)
The courtyard of the proposed building would generate amplified noise until the intended midnight operation and
beyond especially for staff and back of house operations running after license time granted in close down operations,
directly affecting our ability to sleep in our main room facing the establishment, on weekdays especially, affecting our
ability to work and the additional problems for young infants when in residence.
Music playing continuously through to the applied for times will add additional noise, in a single glazed facility, adding to
an already busy highway noise and I ask for a test DB reading to be taken at the premises and considered against
permitted DB readings in the vicinity for residents.
The Tennant has stated an intention to Landlord, which has been conveyed to us as residents through our ongoing
relationship with landlord, that tenant wishes to; erect a smoking shelter at the rear of the property, which would
encourage additional noise and air pollution to this courtyard in which our residency is situated and the quietness of
which was a key selling point of the property at time of sale in its seclusion from the noise generating highway.
Light pollution is a concern and want to ensure the license holder would be able to adhere to restrictions for this
conservation area. The current tenants of the premises operate in daytime office weekday hours only and so by nightfall
all light from the building is off and only sensor driven lighting operative overnight. Additional light from the intended
application floors through non-daylight hours will again compromise the ability to sleep in our bedroom which looks
directly onto the property and the aforementioned intended smoking shelter/beer garden to rear would generate a
significant concern in its consequential additional light pollution for safe and aesthetic operation, to this conservation
area and compromised residential plot.
We have a concern at the impact of noise from Deliveries, at potentially early hours, to local residents hauling and storing
heavy and often metallic items such as barrels or other stock over which we as residents directly affected would have
little control or protection.
Bin storage to rear of property will be unsightly and in direct view from the front elevations and patio-garden of our
property. There is also the potential for encouragement of vermin given the intended refuse will be food and beverage
waste.
Access
Parking is already at capacity for the other Tennant of the building (top floor) and additional cars permitted in the
courtyard for applicants staff would pose the issue of logistical restricted access and safe exit for the residents.
As the Landlord is currently withholding granting the residents of claro court development access to view and control the
cooperative maintenance budget and access rights, we are concerned if we will have a certain extent of responsibility for
the electric barrier which will be used by staff of the proposed new establishment
Safety & Security

Page 67

The intended application may encourage inquisitive public access of this private land, compromising the seclusion of the
plot and possible hygiene & maintenance degradation if clients leave the licensed premises at late hours and use the
secluded rear for Anti-Social Behaviour, as is seen encouraged in the nearby area of Frazer theatre.
No capacities for the intended applicant and business have been communicated to us and there is a concern for residents
where safe evacuation routes for public and staff would be situated again potentially in conflict with my properties own
safe exit to main highway.
Additional staff, and also public attempts using the premises, would be party to information of the privately maintained
and code controlled electric gate, which is essential for access to our property.
We are concerned for our own safety and other residents of the development, when customers of the premises with view
of the access drive and particularly those using any granted outdoor facilities to rear, possibly late at night, would be
witness to residents accessing our homes, often alone. This could significantly compromise our security and give potential
for public visibility into our homes and car parking area, where currently private and out of sight from any public domain.

I would also ask that in reviewing of this application, the committee considers that this building was recently approved for
change of use class, of which the primary use was intended and communicated as A1 office and any reference to licensed
property was for the sale as an off-property sales, not a public house. As such I am requesting that the application is seen
not fit for purpose in the current proposed building, especially given the conservation and heritage merit of the building,
which this proposed application could compromise and would lead to additional applications for adaptation. At the very
least I please request the permitted hours are reconsidered and reduced to a reasonable earlier evening end time, which
would mitigate some of our concerns on sleeping through noise,light and air pollution curbing beyond 9pm operation
daily. We were not made aware on purchasing our residential property by CFK developments, the Landlord for the
building in question, this was a possibility for the building and instead told in confidence it was an office space utilised by
them and their current contracted Tennant.
Whilst we have in person also tried to discuss with the Landlord our concerns for the proposed Tennant to come to an
amicable and yet commercial solution for the Landlord, this seems to have not been taken into consideration in this
application progressing as it has.
Verbal assurances were made to us residents that this was unlikely the application Tennant would be progressed due to
concerns raised above and they are actively seeking ‘alternative use class tenants’. We are therefore disappointed to
learn of this apparent progression for application of a premise license, which we feel will have serious repercussions to
our health, wellbeing and the value and ability of sale of our property to potential future purchasers for at least the
intended term of this tenancy and beyond.
Yours Sincerely,
Mr. T Woodall & Ms M. Andreeva

Page 68

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

HARROGATE BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING ACT 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM
Your name/organisation
name/name of body you
represent
Organisation name/name of body
you represent (if appropriate)
Your postal address

Dawn O’Rooke

Name of the premises you are
making a representation about
Address of the premises you are
making a representation about

Former Nat West Bank/Claro Chambers
Claro Chambers, 42 High Street Knaresborough
HG5 0EQ

What are you making a representation about?
Please indicate which part of the licence/certificate application you are making a representation about
(i.e. Terminal hours, and music and dancing on Friday and Saturday night)
Hours,
Music/Noise pollution
Outside space at the back of the premises proposed for smoking and genral outdoor use during the
licensed hours.

To be valid, your representation must relate to at least one of the four Licensing Objectives
Licensing Objective
Please provide full details of your concerns regarding the
application and include any evidence you may have in
support of it.
Please use separate sheets if necessary
To prevent crime and disorder

Public safety

The rear of the property is a residential development with single
access along side the proposed outdoor area. It is inevitable that
people drinking will get disinhibited and this may inhibit residents
Access.

To prevent public nuisance

An area of the size proposed would encourage people to gather in
numbers, consequently noise, light and smoke pollution is
inevitable.
There is no doubt that any noise emanating from the proposed
outdoor area area at the rear of the building will travel and will
adversely effect the residents rights to peaceful enjoyment of
property. This will be experienced continually from noon to
midnight.
There is no ballast between the outside space and the
surrounding housing – both the ones which will be at the back of
the propsed outdoor and the houses and flats along Berrys
Passage.
Noise travels easily up and down the passage and the
surrounding buildings and houses almost form an amphitheatre
Page
71site which will also be alongside a further a
around the
proposed
car park which is a further low lying area.

There will be clearing up of sundry waste and empty glasses both
after the premises close as well as dispersal and collection of
empty bottles and waste which also causes considerable noise
pollution at unsociable hours.
Light pollution from the proposed outdoor space will also affect
residents. Some flats and houses will sit above the proposed site.
Already I experience some light pollution from both the car park
lights of the flats of 42 A-D, and the ones alongside the Tesco site
– all of which are on through the night. This directly affect my
living room and my sleeping area and will exacerbate an existing
problem.
Pollution from smoking is also inevitable
Additionally – I understand that the upper floors of the premises
are used as offices and this will be disrupting.
Originally when this site was developed and housing was built it
was on the understanding that the building would be utilised as
offices.
To protect children from harm

Please suggest any conditions that
could be added to the licence to remedy
your representation or other
suggestions you would like the
Licensing Sub Committee to take into
account.

No permitted development at the back of the building
– this would inevitably impact residents rights to
peaceful enjoyment of their property
Should the application be favourably received I would
request:
 that the noise from recorded music, films etc.
should not be audible outside of the premises
 Any smoking/outdoor area should be directed at
the front of the building (which will mean that the
building itself should absorb much of the noise,
light and smoke pollution in the road.
Outdoor spaces which are alongside public areas such
as pavements receive experience regular general public
footfall, are subject to more public scrutiny and this
mitigates potential disruptive and anti social behaviour.
Development at the front of the premises is also in line
with current guidelines, permissions and solutions which
have been adopted to cope with the impact of Covid.
There are already a number of vacant establishments in
Knaresborough that were formerly licensed properties
which would be more suitable for the purposes outlined. It
seem perverse not to utilise such properties.

I/ fully understand that this Representation will be made available to the applicant and included in
the Sub Committee’s Hearing papers which are publically accessible documents, and any
subsequent appeal court proceedings.
Signed:

Date: 16th September 2021

D M O Rooke

If this form is sent as an email attachment, its transmission will imply that you have agreed the
above conditions.

Page 72

Please see Notes below.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
Your e-mail address
Your contact telephone number

SUPPORTING NOTES
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing sub Committee
and any subsequent appeal proceeding. If you do not attend, the Committee will consider any
representations that you have made.
This form must be returned within the Statutory Period, which is 28 days from the date the notice was
displayed on the premises or the date specified in the Public Notice in the newspaper. Please contact
Licensing by email: licensing@harrogate.gov.uk or telephone: 01423 500600 ext 56843 if you are in doubt
about the date.
They can only relate to the four licensing objectives.
Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required under the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with copies of the relevant
representations that have been made. Your representation will therefore be passed to the applicant, to
allow them the opportunity of addressing your concerns. Your representation will be published in the
report available to the Licensing Sub-Committee, which will be publicly available. Names and addresses
will only be withheld from the Sub-Committee report at your request. Email addresses and contact
telephone numbers will not be publicly available.
In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to this authority may be reluctant
to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal details, such as name and
address, are divulged to the applicant. If you are concerned about potential repercussions
following submission of a representation then you must make this Department aware and we can
consider alternative approaches.

Please return this form when completed along with any additional sheets to: licensing@harrogate.gov.uk
Or:
Safer Communities (Licensing)
Harrogate Borough Council
P.O. Box 787
Harrogate
HG1 9RW

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 75

Page 76

13 September 2021

Dear Licensing Team,
I am writing to object to the application for a premises licence submitted by Major Point Bars Ltd
for: Claro Social at 42 High Street, Knaresborough HG5 0ET.
I am a Director

We operate an established PR and marketing agency providing valuable and skilled local
employment for 10 people based at the premises during the following hours:
•
•
•

Mondays - 8.30am-5.30pm
Tuesdays to Thursdays - 9am-5.30pm
Fridays - 9am-5pm

a lease agreement with the building owners which incorporates into
the terms of the lease peaceful enjoyment
.
We are therefore deeply concerned to learn of the licensing application, and we wish to strongly
oppose for the following reasons:
•

The proximity of the proposed licensed premises to the above commercial offices will put
at risk employees due to the changes proposed, as they will compromise the fire escape
exit from the first floor.

•

Lack of suitable delivery access at the back of the building due to the compact nature of
the building footprint, means that if successful the application will lead to over-intensive
development at the rear, which will create health and safety risks due to the lack of
space.

Page 77

•

This proposed application includes smoking at the rear of the building, which backs onto
commercial and residential buildings. Given the small area there is an increased fire risk
to both 42 High Street and other adjacent properties.

•

Potential increased crime in the area, both inside and outside of 42 High Street, due to
higher levels of footfall, and people under the influence of alcohol. The consequences of
this are significant, with a higher risk of crime and disorder in the licensed premises and
outside in areas used by the public, our office workers and local residents.

•

Increased risks to office workers’ personal safety and security as drinkers may
mistakenly enter Claro Chambers, leading to the disruption of business operations and
continuity by those under the influence.

•

The safety and wellbeing of our staff is critical. Our office access is situated at the rear of
the building with colleagues entering and leaving through the only access door, adjacent
to the door to the rear of the proposed development. This public nuisance would be
compounded if our staff exiting the building were approached by patrons who are under
the influence as this would cause distress and anxiety to the more vulnerable members
of our workforce.

•

We run a professional business, involving calls and meetings with companies from all
over the world. We also liaise with various UK and global media outlets daily. Any noise
(from music, films or loud activity in the premises below or as people enter and leave the
premises) or public nuisance pollution (people smoking or chatting or singing outside, for
example) is a business risk and affects the peaceful enjoyment of the building which
forms part of the lease agreement. Additionally, the development will compromise the
quality of our interactions with clients and media and also distract the team from their
daily work.

It is for all of the above reasons that we strongly object to this licensing application and submit
these objections for your consideration.

Yours sincerely

Fiona Broomfield
Director

Page 78

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

26 September 2021
Reference: Premises Licence at Claro Chambers, 42 High Street, Knaresborough

Dear Licensing Team
I write not as a Harrogate resident but as a long-term employee and PR Director of

I must express my most strenuous objections to the application for a premises licence submitted
by Major Point Bars Ltd for Claro Social at 42 High Street – on the ground floor directly beneath
our offices. I find the proposal personally and professionally distressing for a number of reasons.
Firstly, the lease agreement that
has with the building owners includes in its
terms our right to peaceful enjoyment of the first floor. This would be immediately breached with the
introduction of music or TV, whether inside or out; potential food smells; and noise from people
congregating in the proposed outdoor area which sits directly beneath the windows to our
conference room, canteen room and ladies’ toilets.
Ours is a successful international business employing 10 skilled local people and on a daily basis
we are involved in video calls from our conference room, sometimes outside of normal office hours
to communicate with clients on the other side of the world, for example in Canada and the US.
Disruption to these calls at any time would be distracting, have a significant impact on our client
relationships and potentially be damaging to our business.
PR and marketing is a collaborative industry so we are working in the office with many Covid
precautions and protections still in force. If there were, say, two or three team members on a client
conference call, how on earth could we have the windows open to allow the circulation of fresh air,
as recommended by Government, if there is the equivalent of a beer garden within feet of our
window? It would be impossible.
It is extremely likely that Claro Social customers – including smokers - would congregate to both
front and rear of the premises. Aside from the risk to our health of second-hand smoke, I find the
smell highly offensive, and to be subject to this for more than half my working day, Monday to
Friday, would be completely unbearable. Even if we keep the windows closed, it is an old, listed
building and the windows are neither airtight nor odour-proof. I know my colleagues, all nonsmokers, feel the same. Don’t we have a right to access clean, fresh air at our place of work?
And does Knaresborough High Street really need to see a “gathering” for hours every day in front of
what used to be a very respectable and peaceful bank? Elderly or infirm people often rest on the
benches on the pavement and I have no doubt they would be intimidated.
I am also very concerned about security. The outside area plans appear to enclose our fire escape
– how can that be permitted? How are patrons to be stopped from climbing up that fire escape to
have a look through or bang on our afore-mentioned office windows? The fire escape can’t be

Page 81

barred, that defeats the object. How do we stop patrons from entering via our ground floor
access door, also within feet of the proposed outdoor area, and causing disruption to our
business? We can’t lock it or we would never hear deliveries or visitors from the first floor, not to
mention the cost and inconvenience of cutting keys for every member of the team.
My personal security on leaving the building is making me especially anxious. Even though our
official hours are to 5pm or 5.30pm, most days I, and sometimes other colleagues, work until
7pm or later. For over half the year it is dark by this time, and the later in the day it is, the more
time people will have had to consume alcohol and potentially get rowdy. It is a very disturbing
prospect.
How are deliveries to be made to the new premises? It would be impossible to get a delivery
vehicle into the car park due to its very small size and our cars parked there (again, parking
included in the lease). So I assume that would mean yet more disruption from lorries blocking the
High Street in the morning when we are trying to get to work. There’s enough of that already! If
development work is going to happen to adapt the premises, how will those vehicles be
accommodated? And that noise would, again, be extremely disruptive.
How would random drivers be prevented from accessing the car park? At the moment there’s
nothing to stop them driving in thinking it’s the Social’s car park: the barrier lifts on approach but
a code is needed to exit. There will be nowhere for them to park except one of our leased spaces
if one of us is out at a meeting or event. Or we and our neighbours could be blocked in. And of
course further disruption if they decide to enter the building and ask
for the
exit code. This happens already once or twice a month (the notice on the barrier pole is often
ignored) so what would it be like with a drinking/social establishment there?
Has fire risk been assessed? Including smokers outside the building? Like I said, it’s a very old
building with wooden doors, windows and sills. It wouldn’t take much more than a carelessly
discarded cigarette butt during a dry spell to create disaster which, given the close nature of
buildings up the High Street, could easily spread to neighbouring properties. (And we’re back to
the fire escape again.)
Finally, it has to be acknowledged that there would be an increased risk of crime in the area due
to higher footfall combined with the consumption of alcohol by patrons. Even just petty crime
such as littering and excessive noise disruption should not have to be tolerated by me, my
colleagues or anyone else living locally or simply passing by.
I urge you to take these objections into consideration and block the licence application. Please
acknowledge receipt of this email and advise what the next steps are.
Yours faithfully
Carol Rees (Ms)

Page 82

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 87

Page 88

*PERSONAL INFO REMOVED*
28 September 2021
Reference: Premises Licence at Claro Chambers, 42 High Street, Knaresborough

Dear Licensing Team
I write as a Knaresborough resident as well as an *PERSONAL INFO REMOVED*
I am strongly opposed to the application for a premises licence submitted by Major Point Bars Ltd
for Claro Social at 42 High Street – *PERSONAL INFO REMOVED*
Firstly, the lease agreement that Allott and Associates has with the building owners includes in its
terms our right to peaceful enjoyment of the first floor. This would be immediately breached with the
introduction of music or TV, whether inside or out; potential food smells; and noise from people
congregating in the proposed outdoor area which sits directly beneath the windows to our
conference room, canteen room and ladies’ toilets.
Ours is a successful international business and on a daily basis, we are involved in video calls from
our conference room, sometimes outside of normal office hours to communicate with clients on the
other side of the world, for example in Canada and Australia. Disruption to these calls at any time
would be distracting, embarrassing, and would, have a significant impact on our client relationships
and potentially be damaging to our business.
PR and marketing is a collaborative industry so we are working in the office with many Covid
precautions still in place. If there were, say, two or three team members on a client conference call,
how on earth could we have the windows open to allow the circulation of fresh air, as recommended
by Government, if there is the equivalent of a beer garden within feet of our window? It would be
impossible. Outside of meetings, all of our individual roles require concentration, and when not
discussing matters of work we spend long periods in silence, particularly when researching or
writing. So, the prospect of a constant hubbub of noise from below is very troubling indeed.
It is extremely likely that Claro Social customers – including smokers - would congregate around the
outside of the premises. Obviously, it would present a risk to the team’s health to have second-hand
smoke floating up all day, not least of all my own as I am on strong medication for asthma. I find the
smell really unpleasant, and to be subject to this whilst trying to concentrate on work would be
completely unbearable. Even if we keep the windows closed, it is an old, listed building and the
windows are neither airtight nor odour-proof. I know my colleagues, all non-smokers, feel the same.
Don’t we have a right to access clean, fresh air at our place of work?
And does Knaresborough High Street really need another bar? Social venues like bars and pubs
are great in their proper place, but we already have plenty of them. Locating a bar directly under a
long-established professional business is not the right move, to say nothing of nearby residents and
the disruption it would cause to them. Furthermore, elderly people often rest on the benches on the
pavement outside as well, and I have no doubt they would feel intimidated.
I am also very concerned about security. How do we stop patrons from entering via our ground floor
access door, also within feet of the proposed outdoor area, and causing disruption to our business?

Page 89

We can’t lock it or we would never hear deliveries or visitors from the first floor, not to mention the
cost and inconvenience of cutting keys for every member of the team.
How are deliveries to be made to the new premises? It would be impossible to get a delivery vehicle
into the car park due to its very small size and our cars parked there (again, parking included in the
lease). So I assume that would mean yet more disruption from lorries blocking the High Street in the
morning when we are trying to get to work. There’s enough of that already due to surrounding
shops’ deliveries! If development work is going to happen to adapt the premises, how will those
vehicles be accommodated? And that noise would, again, be extremely disruptive.
How would random drivers be prevented from accessing the car park? At the moment there’s
nothing to stop them driving in thinking it’s the Social’s car park: the barrier lifts on approach but a
code is needed to exit. There will be nowhere for them to park except one of our leased spaces if
one of us is out at a meeting or event. Or we and our neighbours could be blocked in. And of course
further disruption if they decide to enter the building and ask *PERSONAL INFO REMOVED* for the
exit code. This happens already once or twice a month (the notice on the barrier pole is often
ignored) so what would it be like with a drinking establishment there?
Finally, it has to be acknowledged that there would be an increased risk of crime in the area due to
higher footfall combined with the consumption of alcohol by patrons. Even just petty crime such as
littering and excessive noise disruption should not have to be tolerated by me, my colleagues or
anyone else living locally or simply passing by.
As a Knaresborough resident I urge you to take these objections into consideration and think of the
impact this development would have. I have lived in the town for many years and raised my family
here. I feel like I am watching Knaresborough’s slow and painful death as the High Street continues
to decline, and cheaply built, cramped housing estates are thrown up left right and centre that lack
adequate amenities and are contrary to the towns historic character. The last thing I need is for my
peaceful, pleasant place of work to become noisy, smelly and difficult to work in. It’s not right for my
workplace, and it’s not right for Knaresborough.
Please acknowledge receipt of this email and advise what the next steps are.
Yours faithfully
Rose Sims
*PERSONAL INFO REMOVED*

Page 90

HARROGATE BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING ACT 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM
Jack Hall and Hayley Mckay
Your name/organisation
name/name of body you
represent
Organisation name/name of body
you represent (if appropriate)
Your postal address
Name of the premises you are
making a representation about
Address of the premises you are
making a representation about

*PERSONAL INFO REMOVED
*PERSONAL INFO REMOVED*
Claro Social
42 High Street, Knaresborough, HG5 0EJ

What are you making a representation about?
Please indicate which part of the licence/certificate application you are making a representation about
(i.e. Terminal hours, and music and dancing on Friday and Saturday night)

To be valid, your representation must relate to at least one of the four Licensing Objectives
Licensing Objective
Please provide full details of your concerns regarding the
application and include any evidence you may have in
support of it.
Please use separate sheets if necessary
To prevent crime and disorder
Drug and Substance Distribution & Abuse:
Unfortunately as is the nature of any premises licence, the
distribution and abuse of illegal substances is often rife around the
surrounding areas of said premises. No doubt, the license holder
will have measures of mitigation to limit or yield these practises
taking place on premises, this only encourages illicit behaviour to
take place in the surrounding area where license holders
jurisdiction is not applicable. In these cases the likely candidate
would be the secluded common area around the back of the
intended building and the only right of access (barriered alleyway)
that makes up the front of the development.
Anti-Social Behaviour:
Presuming the rights of access to our own development (Claro
Court) will be utilised as a thoroughfare or a place of loitering for
disbanding intoxicated consumers (whether intended to or not),
the nature of its secluded setting will undoubtably encourage AntiSocial Behaviour such as urination, altercations and unreasonable
and unnecessary noise as is presently evident in both Berry’s
Passage and access to Frazer’s theatre. This will once again be
likely out of the jurisdiction of the licence premises holder and
thus very hard to mitigate and police. As a result of this a
substantial compromise of safety and security to the residents of
claro court is apparent.
Graffiti and Defacement:
Due to thePage
rights of91
access not having been brought to the public’s
attention we have thus far had no issue with the titled above.

Referring back to the entrance and right of access to Frazer’s
theatre this is increasingly present (especially the recently erected
mural pieces).
Public safety

To prevent public nuisance

-

Safety of our residency and the unwanted inquisition of
intoxicated members of the public, inviting unwanted attention
via the rights of access at the front of and into our private
dwelling.

-

Intoxicated members of the public becoming intimidating,
abusive and confrontational towards residents of claro court
(especially the safety of female residents). An example of this
would be my partner in particular works non-standard hours
making her susceptible and vulnerable to the end of
operations when this is likely to be in full effect.

Noise pollution:
The proposed outdoor seating arrangement would, although
partially enclosed, undoubtably generate amplified noise
throughout the late hours of evening as well as infringing on the
early hours of the morning during both weekdays and weekends.
This is of great concern to both myself, partner and other
residents as adaption to dynamic sleeping habits in order to
satisfy dynamic shift schedules demanded by work/occupation
will be unquestionably interrupted, this is especially applicable
but not limited to the working week and will undoubtably cause
stress induced issues.
On top of the above, the closely related licencing hours for music
and events will again only exacerbate this above concern and
completely amplify the reasonable background acoustic output
presently encountered.
Concerns over attenuation of this noise we see problematic as it
is to our understanding that due to the intended buildings grade
listed status. Installation of any independent attenuation solution
would undoubtably look unsightly at the front of our development.
After hour operations, such as the dispersing of both intoxicated
consumers and staff alike would only elongate noise pollution
way into the early hours of the morning, especially the loitering of
intoxicated punters after hours which is already evident
throughout Knaresborough town centre in the early hours of the
morning.
Emptying of bottle bins and general waste along with deliveries
only further emphasise the reservations outlined above.
As our bedsitting is situated on the 2nd floor towards the front of
the property this will unquestionably cause distress.
It must be noted that the quiet and quaint setting of the
development was used as a key selling point during the purchase
process.

Light pollution:
Additional
light 92
emitted through the early hours and in general
Page
non-day light hours will once again compromise the ability to

maintain required sleeping patterns for work/occupation. This
also infringing on what is currently an area of conversation for
emergency exit to both floors, which itself is currently
aesthetically acceptable.

Smoke Pollution:
The intention of constructing a smoking shelter only adds concern
of additional air pollution with respect to consumption over area in
such a concentrated designation of the outside enclosure.
Currently the only notable air pollution would be that of the
Highstreet which generates the majority during daytime hours
allowing for a ample window of low emissions in the late afternoon
through evening, to morning. With the smoking shelter in mind this
means an elongated exposure to air pollution throughout the
majority of the entire day.
Waste and Refuge:
Waste and Refuge operations and stores would presumably take
place at the rear of the intended building and thus at the front of
our development. Not only would this be substantially unsightly
but given the nature of it being food and beverage would also
encourage the presence of vermin and degradation of hygiene,
which is currently at a satisfactory level.
To protect children from harm

Both my partner and I had purchased the property with the
intention of trying for a family. As mentioned previously, the
property and greater development was sold to us under the
premise that this was a quiet residential plot with the intentions of
the remaining/existing “coach house” and “old bank” to be
converted into a House dwelling and Flats dwelling respectively.
The proposed licensed opening hours and intended hours to
which music (live and recorded) along with exhibition/event and
film can be active will have obvious detrimental effect to any child
present during the operational hours of the above.
*PERSONAL INFO REMOVED* is also inhabited by babies,
toddlers and children alike, visiting family members, this inclusive
of both my partners and my own nieces (aged 1 and 3
respectively) that frequently stay for overnight visits and on some
occasions multiple accumulative overnight visits.

Please suggest any conditions that
could be added to the licence to remedy
your representation or other
suggestions you would like the
Licensing Sub Committee to take into
account.

-

Integrated noise and light pollution attenuation
enabling noise to be kept under a reasonable
threshold.
- Reduced operational hours (especially but not
limited to midweek + Sundays).
- All waste and refuge operations and storage to
be dealt with out front.
- Investment in safety and security to mitigate the
problematic
Page
93 issues associated with this licence
application.

-

Access to the rear of the intended building i.e.
rights of access, public parking, rear-court/court
yard and coach house + grounds to be strictly
prohibited to all public and limited access to
license holder with the exemption of “tenants
occupying 1st floor”, Residents of Claro Court
and associated guests and CFK/St Roberts
associates.

I/We fully understand that this Representation will be made available to the applicant and
included in the Sub Committee’s Hearing papers which are publically accessible documents, and
any subsequent appeal court proceedings.
Signed:

Date: 27/09/21

If this form is sent as an email attachment, its transmission will imply that you have agreed the
above conditions.
Please see Notes below.
NOT FOR PUBLICATION
Your e-mail address
Your contact telephone number

SUPPORTING NOTES
If you do make a representation you will be invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing sub Committee
and any subsequent appeal proceeding. If you do not attend, the Committee will consider any
representations that you have made.
This form must be returned within the Statutory Period, which is 28 days from the date the notice was
displayed on the premises or the date specified in the Public Notice in the newspaper. Please contact
Licensing by email: licensing@harrogate.gov.uk or telephone: 01423 500600 ext 56843 if you are in doubt
about the date.
They can only relate to the four licensing objectives.
Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required under the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with copies of the relevant
representations that have been made. Your representation will therefore be passed to the applicant, to
allow them the opportunity of addressing your concerns. Your representation will be published in the
report available to the Licensing Sub-Committee, which will be publicly available. Names and addresses
will only be withheld from the Sub-Committee report at your request. Email addresses and contact
telephone numbers will not be publicly available.
In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to this authority may be reluctant
to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal details, such as name and
address, are divulged to the applicant. If you are concerned about potential repercussions
following submission of a representation then you must make this Department aware and we can
consider alternative approaches.

Please return this form when completed along with any additional sheets to: licensing@harrogate.gov.uk
Or:
Safer Communities (Licensing)
Harrogate Borough Council
P.O. Box 787

Page 94

Harrogate
HG1 9RW

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 97

Page 98

Page 99

Page 100

